
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Pensions Board 
 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 13 September 2017 
7.00 pm 

Committee Room 3 - Hammersmith Town Hall 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Employer Representatives 

Councillor Ali Hashem (Chair) 
Councillor Rory Vaughan 
 

Scheme Member Representatives 

Eric Kersey 
Orin Miller 
Neil Newton 
 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Amrita Gill 

Assistant Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2094 
 E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website: 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend. A loop system for hearing impairment 
is provided, along with disabled access to the building. 
 

Date Issued: 05 September 2017 
 

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Pensions Board 
Agenda 

 
13 September 2017 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  1 - 4 

 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2017 as an 
accurate record and note any actions. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions 
and Standards Committee. 
 
 

 

4.   MINUTES OF PENSIONS SUB COMMITTEE  5 - 14 

 Minutes of the Pensions Sub Committee meetings held on 15 March 
and 20 June 2017. 
 

 

5.   PENSIONS BUSINESS PLAN 2017/18  15 - 26 

 Update report from Interim Director of Pensions and Treasury.  



6.   PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION UPDATE   

 Verbal Update update from David Coates. 
 

 

7.   DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING   

 The next meeting will be held on 7 February 2018.  
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Pensions Board 
Minutes 

 

Tuesday 7 February 2017 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Ali Hashem and Rory Vaughan 
 
Co-opted members:  Eric Kersey, Orin Miller, Neil Newton, and Richard Gregg 

 

Officers: Peter Carpenter, David Coates David Abbott, and Amrita Gill. 
 
External Guests: Graeme Muir (Barnett Waddingham LLP) 
 

13. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2016 were agreed as a 
correct record and were signed by the Chair.  
 

14. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
None. 
 

15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

16. MINUTES OF PENSIONS SUB COMMITTEE  
 
Peter Carpenter highlighted that the minutes of the Pensions Sub Committee held on 
20 November 2016 were still in draft.  
 
RESOLVED 
The minutes of the Pensions Sub-Committee were noted. 
 
 
 

17. ACTUARIAL VALUATION  
 
Graeme Muir of Barnett Waddingham gave a presentation on the 2016 valuation and 
highlighted the following points: 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 The core purpose of the valuation was to determine how much employers 
needed to pay in future to have enough assets to pay benefits. 

 Section 13 of the Pensions Act provided for an independent review by the 
Government Actuary Department – they would be looking at compliance, 
consistency, solvency, and long term cost efficiency. Section 13 was 
introduced to improve governance and give people a better understanding of 
how funds were performing in relation to each other. 

 The funding level as at March 2016 was 88% (compared to 83% in 2013) 
putting it in the middle of the 85 funds that had reported at the time of writing. 

 
The Board asked who decided on the final figure for the discount rate. Graeme Muir 
responded that ultimately the actuary decided but there were a number of 
discussions with officers and the Pensions Sub-Committee. 
 
The Board asked why the funding level presented by the actuary differed from the 
standardised funding level from the Government. Graeme Muir responded that the 
Government actuary used different assumptions in their calculations – national 
mortality tables rather than local tables etc. 
 

18. PENSION ADMINISTRATION UPDATE  
 
David Coates presented the report that updated the board on the performance of 
Surrey Pensions Services in the provision of pension administration services to the 
Council under the Delegation Agreement.   
 
Members of the Board were updated on the inherited backlog from Capita. 4000 
member records were deferred for data cleansing – 520 of the cases had been 
cleansed so far. Surrey City Council were on track to cleanse the remainder within 
the next 11 months.  
 
249 H&F pensions had not been put into payment – 67 of the cases were matched to 
a known LBHF employee record. Monthly meetings with Surrey were planned to 
update on this matter. 
 
The Board enquired how the 249 deferred members were determined and asked 
about the Council’s legal position on the payments due. David Coates said paper 
records were scanned and sent to Surrey and Capita to identify payments due. The 
Council had to demonstrate that reasonable efforts were made to trace members 
however, it was a legal obligation of the individual to update the Council of any 
changes to their personal circumstances.  
 
The Board was informed that there were 450 instances of historical unresolved 
casework and 40 cases were resolved. The remaining cases were each categorised 
into high, medium, and low priority - with a view to tackling the high priority cases 
first.  
 
David Coates said all missing employer year-end files from 2014-2105 had been 
received by Surrey and had been processed. 550 H&F cases had been identified as 
having queries outstanding from employers. The plan was to resolve these cases by 
August 2017. 

Page 2



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
David Coates informed the Board that there was some disagreement on the 
pensions-related administrative duties between BT and Surrey. A meeting would 
take place to resolve these issue and agree standard operating procedures. He also 
highlighted that the My Pensions Helpdesk had resolved 81% of incoming calls from 
scheme members at the first contact. Positive feedback was received from pensions 
surgeries held on 6 December 2016 – with 28 members attending for advice and 
guidance. 
 
The Board acknowledged the good work and efforts made by Surrey in relation to 
response rates and asked for positive feedback to be passed on to them. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Pension Board noted the report, and agreed that further progress be 
reviewed at the next meeting. 
 
 

19. PENSION ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY  
 
David Coates presented the administration strategy report and noted that the 
strategy, as shown in Appendix 1 of the report, was implemented on 1 January 2017. 
It was noted that failure to comply with the standards shown in the report could result 
in charges being levied by the Administering Authority to employers in accordance 
with the terms set out in the schedule of charging in Section 6. There was also 
provision to generate a charge when the Administering Authority has procured third 
party advice on behalf of a Scheme Employer.  
 
The Board asked at what level the strategy was approved. David Coates said it was 
approved at the Pensions Sub-Committee on 21 September 2016.  
 
A Board member said that he welcomed the strategy and felt the penalties would be 
a useful lever for employers who relied on third-party payroll suppliers.   
 
RESOLVED 
That the Pensions Board noted the Pensions Administration Strategy as defined in 
Appendix 1 of the report. 
 
 
 

20. RISK REGISTER  
 
David Coates informed the Board that two minor amendments were made to the risk 
register at the September meeting of the Pension Sub Committee. These two 
amendments were presented in the appendix together with the updated risk 
registers. No further amendments were made at the 30 November Sub Committee 
meeting. 
 
RESOLVED 
The Pensions Board noted the risk register. 

Page 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 
 
 

21. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
Richard Gregg announced that he would be moving on in April 2017 and the Board 
would need to find an alternative representative. The Chair thanked him for his hard 
work and wished him luck in his future endeavours 
 

 
Meeting started: 7:00 pm 
Meeting ended: 8:45pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
 
 
Contact officer Amrita Gill 

Assistant Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2094 
 E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Pensions Sub-
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Wednesday 15 March 2017 
 

 

 
 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Michael Adam, Iain Cassidy (Chair), PJ Murphy 
and Guy Vincent 
 
External Guests: Kevin Humpherson from Deloittes 

 

Officers: Peter Carpenter, Peter Metcalfe, Susan Hands and Amrita Gill 
 
1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
Peter Carpenter noted the following correction under Item 7 – London CIV 
Update: 
Delete “The advice from Deloitte was to pay a flat fee plus performance” and 
replace it with “The advice from Deloitte was to pay a flat fee”. 
 
RESOLVED 
That, with the above correction, the minutes of the meeting held on 30 
November 2016 were agreed as a correct record and were signed by the 
Chair. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor PJ Murphy. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Nicholas Botterill. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

4. DRAFT PENSIONS BOARD MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2017 were agreed as a 
correct record. 
 

5. PENSIONS FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE PACK  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Peter Metcalfe presented the quarterly update pack for the quarter ended 31 
December 2017 and noted that the value of the fund had increased to £982.1 
million as at 31 December 2016. 
Kevin Humpherson, in reference to page 19 of the agenda, noted good 
performance over the last quarter with key drivers being Majedie and banking 
sector stocks. 
 
Councillors noted that the pension fund risk register needed to be updated as 
all items were categorised as either low or very low risk. Councillors also 
requested further detail on voting rights and for the forward plan to be 
updated to reflect the London CIV visit and the administration strategy for the 
September meeting.  
 
RESOLVED 
That the report was noted and the new items be added to the forward plan 
 

6. PENSION FUND ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION  
 
Peter Carpenter presented the Draft Certification Report from the Council’s 
actuary, Barnett Waddingham, certifying the rates that would be used for 
2017/18, 2018/19, and 2019/20 were appropriate and would reduce the 
overall pension deficit in the appropriate timescales.  
 
Councillors asked what the discount rate needed to be if the figures were to 
change for the funding level to hit 100%. Peter Carpenter estimated the figure 
to be around the mid 6% level and would get confirmation from the Actuary.  
 
Councillors queried why when Public Sector Schemes funding levels were 
decreasing that Private Sector Deficit figures were increasing. Peter 
Carpenter would confirm why this was the case.  
 
RESOLVED 
That the Sub-Committee noted that the Pension Fund rates to be used by the 
Council, Admitted and Scheduled bodies for the next 3 years and the 
Actuaries draft certification that these rates were appropriate to reduce the 
deficit in line with Government Actuarial requirements. 
 

7. UPDATE TO ISS LEGISLATION AND FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT  
 
Peter Carpenter presented the item and noted that that the Committee, at its 
meeting on 30th November received a paper setting out the requirements of a 
new Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) which replaced the existing 
Statement of Investment Principles (SIP). The new ISS had been completed 
and was presented for approval. The current Investment Strategy was not 
altered because of the introduction of the ISS.  
 
Following the final Actuarial Report, section 7.2 of the draft Funding Strategy 
Statement (FSS) had been amended. In addition, Section 12 had been 
corrected to refer to the new ISS and not the previous SIP. 
 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillors asked that section 6.1 was amended to include wording on social 
responsibility.  
 
RESOLVED 

1. That the Pensions Sub-Committee approved the new ISS required by      
changes of Legislation to be implemented as at the 1st April 2017. 

 
2. That the Pensions Sub-Committee approved the changes made to the 

Draft Funding Strategy Statement approved in the November 2016 
meeting. 

 
8. LONDON CIV UPDATE  

 
Peter Carpenter presented the report and noted that Councils were requested 
to move Pensions Fund assets into Collective Investment Vehicles (CIV) to 
create economies of scale and achieve lower fees and greater returns from 
investment managers. The paper set out what opportunities were available 
through the London CIV and the pipeline of investment managers that would 
become available in the near-term.  
 
Councillors asked how much of the equity-based funds would be transferred 
to the CIV. Peter Carpenter said the majority of equities would move to the 
CIV when Majedie transferred but passives couldn’t transfer due to a legal 
issue that was still being worked through. It was estimated that around 60 
percent of the total fund would be transferred to the CIV (or using products 
with CIV negotiated fees) by the end of the summer. 
 
Councillors asked how the onboarding was progressing compared to the 
other pools. Peter Carpenter said that London CIV was ahead but others 
were starting to catch up, particularly as some were making inclusion 
mandatory. Councillors also queried how manager meetings would work in 
the future, as the Sub-Committee’s relationship would be with the CIV and not 
the fund managers. 
 
Councillors asked how the move to London CIV would affect the way the sub-
committee operated. Peter Carpenter said that the sub-committee would still 
be responsible for setting its asset allocation, however it might lose the 
discretion of screening individual fund managers. Peter Carpenter said that 
he would provide a briefing on the implications for the governance of the fund.  
 
Councillors asked for clarification on whether the CIV or the sub-committee 
had the primary fiduciary responsibility. Peter Carpenter said that the fiduciary 
responsibilities remained with the sub-committee, as well as ensuring that the 
investment strategy was exercised and all legislative responsibilities were 
delivered. He advised that the London CIV should be invited to the next 
meeting to discuss governance arrangements and how the interface between 
the Council, the CIV, and fund managers would work in practice. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Pensions Sub-Committee noted that the present position regarding 
Fund Managers presently available via the London CIV, and the pipeline of 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Managers becoming available and used this to inform future investment 
decisions. 
 

9. INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW  
 
Peter Carpenter presented the report and said that the council had had its 
triennial valuations, therefore the Investment Strategy needed to be reviewed 
to ensure it met the funds fiduciary responsibilities. 
 
Councillors asked if officers agreed with the findings of Unigestion’s asset 
allocation analysis – i.e. if the fund was more heavily weighted towards 
equities than previously thought. Kevin Humpherson said he agreed that 
some instruments used by the fund were ‘equity-like’ in that they performed 
in-line with equity markets and that the fund should explore alternative. 
 
Councillors noted that the equity markets had made significant gains recently 
and suggested locking-in some of the gains the fund had made or hedging 
against a downturn. Peter Carpenter said he would arrange a sub-group to 
undertake this work and estimated that the first meeting of this grouping 
would be in around 6 weeks. 
 
Councillors, referring to page 106 of the agenda, asked if there was now a 
statutory obligation to take account of ‘environmental, social, and economic 
constraints’. Kevin Humpherson said there was no obligation but it was 
important to look at what a ‘good company’ was – good governance in 
particular was a key indicator for performance. 
 
Lewis Coenen-Rowe of Friends of the Earth attended the meeting to discuss 
divestment from companies involved in the extraction and burning of fossil 
fuels. 
 
The Chair asked officers if they knew the extent of the fund’s investments in 
fossil fuels. Peter Carpenter said he could provide that information for 
discussion at the first sub-group meeting. 
 
Councillors asked how ‘green’ funds’ returns compared with funds that 
included fossil fuel companies. Kevin Humpherson noted that the Future 
World Fund’s performance tracked very closely to the index, even surpassing 
it slightly. He said he could put together more information on alternative funds 
for consideration at a future meeting. 
 
The Chair asked for an assessment of the impact of divesting from fossil fuel 
companies. 
 
In addition, Councillors queried if Companies adhered to Fund Manager ESG 
Policies and how this was measured. 
 
Peter Carpenter highlighted that the CIV now have a Low Carbon Officer 
Working Group and the next meeting was on the 28th March.  He would 
circulate the Councils on that working group to the Sub-Committee. 
 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Councillors were presented with a protocol for moving Investment assets into 
the CIV for approval.  This was agreed.  In addition the Sub-Committee were 
informed that there was a requirement for a Stewardship Policy and a Social 
Responsibility Policy.  These would be drafted for agreement at the next 
meeting. 
 
Councillors asked that the draft policy on social responsibility and stewardship 
included a section on the powers of pension funds to tackle excessive 
executive remuneration. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Pension Sub-Committee considered the options set out in this report 
to provide direction to future worked required by the Pension Fund to take 
forward: 
• It’s future investment Strategy 
• It’s Environment, Social and Governance Polices 
While ensuring it keeps within its fiduciary responsibilities.  
 
That to move the requirements forward that the Pension Sub Committee: 

• Set up working group in 6 weeks time to re-examine the Fund’s 
Investment Strategy taking account of funding requirements following 
the triennial valuation and agreement of the ESG Policy including 
assessment of “Carbon Free” requirements set out in the report. 

• Agreed the proposed London CIV transfer protocol 
• Become part of the London CIV Low Carbon Group 
• Draft and agreed a Stewardship Strategy and a Socially Responsible 
Policy. 
 

10. UPDATE OF MANAGERS MEETING THAT TOOK PLACE ON 30 
NOVEMBER  
 
Peter Carpenter provided an update on the managers meeting. 
 

11. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 
The next meeting was scheduled for 20 June 2017. 
 

 
Meeting started: 7:00pm 
Meeting ended: 9:00pm 

Chair   

 
 

Contact officer: Amrita Gill 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 0208 753 2094 
 E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Pensions Sub-
Committee 

Minutes 
 

Tuesday 20 June 2017 
 

 

PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Michael Adam, Iain Cassidy (Chair), PJ Murphy, 
Guy Vincent and Nicholas Botterill  
 
External Guests: Alistair Sutherland from Deloittes 

 

Officers: Peter Carpenter (Interim Director of Treasury and Pensions), Peter Worth 

(Finance Officer), Susan Hands (Interim Finance Manager), and Amrita Gill 

(Assistant Committee Co-ordinator) 
 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR  

 
RESOLVED 
That Councillor Michael Adam was elected as Vice Chair of the Pension Sub 
Committee for the 2017/18 municipal year. 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
Peter Carpenter noted an update under Item 5 – Pensions Fund Quarterly 
Update Pack: The London CIV would attend the Pensions Sub-Committee on 
19 September. 
 
Peter Carpenter noted an update under Item 6 – Pension Fund Actuarial 
Certification: In terms of the actuary figures, the funding had increased from 
88% to 94% and the deficit had halved. Following a discussion with the 
actuary he noted that It would take 10 years to become fully funded at a 
hurdle rate of 6%. He said that the actuary data would be reported to the Sub-
Committee on a quarterly basis going forward. Councillor Michael Adam 
asked why there had been a significant improvement in comparison to the 
figures the Sub-Committee received in January 2017. Peter Carpenter 
responded that he would confirm why this was the case. Peter Carpenter 
confirmed that public sector deficits were lower than private sector figures due 
to the private sector using gilt yields as the comparison basis and public 
sector figures were based on actual returns. 
 
RESOLVED 
That, with the above correction, the minutes of the meeting held on 15 March 
2017 were agreed as a correct record and were signed by the Chair. 
 

Page 10



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor PJ Murphy. 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5. RESULTS OF THE PENSION STRATEGY REVIEW  
 
Peter Carpenter presented the paper and noted the recommendations 
discussed at the investment strategy review working group meeting on 20 
May 2017, which was to remain with the present allocation model. Relative to 
most Local Government allocation models, the Council’s model was not fully 
dependent on equities for its return and had a broad diversification, however 
the present portfolio was 7% overweight in equities and needed to be 
rebalanced as per the asset allocation strategy.  
 
Councillor Michael Adam said to take the opportunity and use some of the 
profit from the equity overweight portfolio and move the assets from LGIM to 
Ruffer and invest the balance into infrastructure. 
 
Peter Carpenter said following agreement from Councillors, discussions 
would be held with the London CIV on 21 June 2017. Councillor PJ Murphy 
asked how long would it take to transfer the assets. Alistair Sutherland said 
the process would take approximately two weeks. Councillors queried if LGIM 
was in the London CIV. Peter Carpenter responded LGIM was a life fund, 
therefore could not be a CIV product however the Council was paying a lower 
fee through the London CIV. 
 
Alistair Sutherland, in reference to Appendix D, noted that four infrastructure 
investment options had been considered and additionally infrastructure would 
depend on drawdown rates. Councillor Michael Adam highlighted that the 
Aviva fund invested in unleveraged infrastructure assets and actively sought 
assets with limited competition for structural reasons, therefore wouldn’t pose 
a risk that came with leverage. 
 
Councillors noted that there was an overlap between Aviva Investors and 
Hermes Investment Management and felt that they were a similar product. 
Councillors felt that they needed to meet with the organisations to assess 
their financial viability prior to making a decision. Alistair Sunderland 
recommended that if Councillors wanted to meet with three different 
infrastructure managers he would recommend a combination of Aviva 
Investors, Standard Life Capita Partners, and First State Investments. Peter 
Carpenter said he would invite the organisations to present to the Sub-
Committee at a separate selection meeting within 6 weeks.  
 
Peter Carpenter noted, in relation to Friends of the Earth he had informed the 
Leader Councillor Stephen Cowan that the Council would continue to embed 
the present allocation strategy due to their fiduciary responsibility, therefore 
would not make any decisions in the short-term, but would review the position 

Page 11



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

after 2 years.  In addition, at the meeting Friends of the Earth were asked for 
a consistent position across London for clarity and consolidation of 
Investment Vehicles. Councillor Guy Vincent commented that actual carbon 
items were with the London CIV and no longer directly with the Council. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. That the Pension Sub-Committee considered the options set out in this 
report to examine the present investment strategy, the results and 
requirements of the recently completed triennial revaluation, external 
factors and investment opportunities to evaluate any changes required 
to the present investment strategy set out in the statement of 
investment principles to ensure that the fund’s assets grow (and were 
protected) at an adequate rate to meet on-going liabilities. 

 
2. That if more work was required to move the strategy forward, that 

meetings were scheduled over the summer to make sure the updated 
strategy was ready in October 2017. 

 
6. QUARTERLY REVIEW PACK  

 
An updated copy of Appendix 1 of the agenda was tabled. 
 
Peter Carpenter presented the quarterly update pack for the quarter that 
ended on 31 March 2017 and noted that the risk register had been updated.  
 
Alistair Sutherland, in reference to Appendix 2 of the report, noted that a 
section on the London CIV had been included to provide the Sub-Committee 
with an overview of the sub-funds currently available on the London CIV 
platform. He also added that The Standard Life and Aberdeen Asset 
Management merger had now taken place.  
 
Councillor Guy Vincent queried if The London CIV were cooperating as 
expected and if they consulted officers on behalf of the Sub-Committee prior 
to making decisions. Alistair Sutherland noted that improvements had been 
made and they were actively working towards streamlining their decision 
making process. He reassured Councillors that, if a fund was being offered 
and officers thought it was not appropriate the Council would be obliged to 
inform the London CIV as it held fiducial responsibility. 
 
In addition, Peter Carpenter commented that Surrey County Council and BT 
would be invited to the next Pensions Board meeting for Councillors to fully 
understand what their present position was and how the Council would get 
assurance that processes were in place and being followed correctly. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the report was noted. 
 
 

7. BUSINESS PLAN  
 

Page 12



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Peter Carpenter presented the report for the Pension Fund Business Plan 
2017-2018 and noted that it was best practice for Council services to have 
business plans that set out objectives of the service.  
 
Councillor PJ Murphy asked whether a cost-benefit analysis had been 
undertaken since the Tri-Borough Treasury and Pensions arrangements were 
established. Peter Carpenter responded that the primary aim of the present 
arrangements was to provide resilience that would not otherwise be there in a 
single Council environment. He also noted that although there was 
considerable consolidation, the three funds were still free to make their own 
choices independently. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Pensions Sub-Committee noted the Tri-Borough Pensions Business 
Plan and agreed with the direction of travel set out in the plan in regard to the 
Action Plan. 
 

8. COMPLIANCE PLAN  
 
Peter Carpenter presented the item and noted that there was a requirement 
for the Sub-Committee, on a yearly basis, to review its governance 
arrangements to ensure statutory requirements were being met. Overall the 
Sub-Committee complied with all statutory requirements except for 
representation. He said that the Sub-Committee may co-opt non-voting 
independent members, including Trade Unions and representatives from the 
admitted and scheduled bodies in the Pensions Fund, however a Trade Union 
Representative had not attended for over three years and as such might have 
dropped off the invite list. The Councillors commented that they had no 
objection to a Trade Union Representative attending future Sub-Committee 
meetings. 
 
RESOLVED 

1. That the Pensions Sub-Committee approved the 2017/18 Governance 
Compliance Statement. 
 

2. That the Pensions Sub-Committee delegated to the Pension Board, as 
its scrutiny body, to review compliance to the Pensions Regulator’s 
Codes of Practice at its next meeting and report back to the Sub-
Committee. 

 
9. ANNUAL REPORT TO SCHEME ADVISORY BOARD ON POOLING  

 
Peter Carpenter presented the report and noted that local authority pension 
fund administering authorities were required to move Pension Fund assets 
into asset pools (such as the London Collective Investment Vehicle or CIV) to 
obtain lower fees from investment managers through economies of scale. The 
paper set out what opportunities were available through the London CIV and 
the pipeline of investment managers that would become available in the near-
term. The Council was in a strong position and was towards the ‘higher end’ 
compared to other London Boroughs with assets on the CIV at 56%. He said 

Page 13



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

that London CIV would be invited to the next Pensions Sub-Committee for 
further discussions with the Councillors. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the Pensions Sub-Committee noted the present position regarding Fund 
Managers presently available via the London CIV and those being used by 
the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham Pension Fund. 
 

10. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  
 
The next meeting was scheduled for 19 September 2017. 
 

 
Meeting started: 7:20pm 
Meeting ended: 8:40pm 

 
 

Chair   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Amrita Gill 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 020 8753 2094 
 E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 14



London Borough of Hammersmith & 
Fulham 

 
PENSIONS BOARD 

 
13 SEPTEMBER 2017 

 

 

PENSIONS BUSINESS PLAN 
 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director 
 

Open Report  
 

Classification: For review and comment 
Key Decision: No 
 

Wards Affected: None 
 

Accountable Director: Peter Worth, Interim Director of Pensions and Treasury 
 

Report Author: Peter Worth, Interim 
Director of Pensions and Treasury 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 07714 333240 
E-mail: pworth@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
1.1. It is Best Practice for Council Services to have business plans that set out to 

the objectives of the Service, how this is being delivered, and highlighting 
issues and how these are to be mitigated. 
 

1.2. As a Tri-borough Service, it is equally important to ensure that there is as 
much standardisation and compliance as is possible across the three Councils 
to ensure economies of scales and associated savings can be delivered. 

 
1.3. This report and associated Appendix sets out the Tri-Borough Pensions 

Business Plan.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1. That the Pensions Board note the Shared Service Pensions Business Plan. 

 
3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

 
3.1. It is best practice to have meaningful and deliverable Business Plans to which 

all Stakeholders are aligned when delivering services. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

mailto:pworth@westminster.gov.uk


3.2. This reports sets out the Shared Service Pensions Business Plan for 
Stakeholders to acknowledge the deliverable of the Pensions Service. 
 

4. PROPOSAL AND ISSUES  
 
4.1. The Tri-Borough Pensions Business Plan is attached as Appendix A. This 

business plan sets out:  
 
4.1.1. The terms of reference;  
 
4.1.2. The size of Funds being managed (From a Monetary and staffing 

number basis);  
 
4.1.3. The aims and purposes of the Funds;  
 
4.1.4. What key documents are and where they are located;  
 
4.1.5. The resources deployed to deliver fund activities.  

 

4.2. In addition, as a final section, the Business Plan sets out the Tri-Borough 
Pension Funds Action Plan for the upcoming period. This action plan is based 
around three theme’s:  

 
4.2.1. Operational improvements which will streamline existing working 

practices and work towards a consistent set of outputs to be delivered 
by the team;  

 
4.2.2. Assurance improvements which highlight ways of demonstrating the 

Funds are being managed effectively and within the regulatory 
framework; and  

 
4.2.3. Financial proposals which will ensure the costs of delivering the scheme 

administration are understood and minimised.  
 

4.3. The objectives of the improvements were identified as follows:  
 

4.4. Operational (doing things better):  
 
4.4.1. To ensure Pension Committees and Local Pension Boards are fully 

supported;  
 
4.4.2. To better understand, manage and monitor the risks of the Funds;  
 
4.4.3. To support an improvement in the quality of communications with 

Employers and Fund.  
 

4.5. Assurance (doing things right):  
 
4.5.1. To ensure the most effective governance arrangements are in place;  
 

Page 16



4.5.2. To improve the level of controls assurance and reporting frameworks;  
 
4.5.3. To ensure the Fund is efficiently managed and complies with relevant 

regulations.  
 

4.6. 4.6. Financial (being cost efficient):  
 
4.6.1. To fully understand the Funds’ current and expected financial position;  
 
4.6.2. To optimise the procurement of services utilised by the Funds;  
 
4.6.3. To minimise the cost of administering the Funds locally;  
 
4.6.4. To improve the quality and transparency of financial reporting.  

 

4.7. The final section of the Business Plan sets out the 17 actions being followed. 
 
5. CONSULTATION 

 
5.1. The Business Plan was reported to the Pensions Sub-Committee on 20th June 

2017. 
 

6. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

6.1. Not applicable. 
 

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

7.1. None. 
 

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

8.1. None. 
 

9. IMPLICATIONS FOR BUSINESS 
 

9.1. None. 
 
10. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 
10.1. None. 
 
 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1 - Pensions Business Plan 
 

Page 17



 

 

 

 

 

PENSION FUND BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



Introduction 

The purpose of this 2017/8 Business Plan is to outline the Funds’ aims and objectives, as 

well as providing an Action Plan of the key priorities of the year ahead to achieve these 

objectives. 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) has experienced significant change 

over the past few years with: 

 the approval of the 2016 Regulations which introduce the new Investment 

Strategy and Funding Strategy Statements which replaced the existing Statement 

of Investment Principles;  

 the Tri-ennial revaluation of the Pension Fund, which took place during 2016/17 

setting out the funding requirements from 2017/18 onwards; 

 The Government requirement to Pool assets and the subsequent movement  of 

assets to the London Collective Investment Vehicle; 

 The requirement from the Government for all staff to be enrolled in a Pensions 

Scheme (by default): 

 the requirement nationally for the 2016/17 financial year for Local Government to 

close and have accounts audited by the end of July; 

 the end of the first full year of embedding of Local Pension Boards which took 

place in 2016/17; 

The Funds are also experiencing a number of other challenges including changes to 

record-keeping, auto-enrolment, changes to tax allowances and Freedom of Choice 

implementation. All three funds now use the same Custodian (Northern Trust) and also 

the same Pension Provider (Surrey Council Council).  Following the implementation of 

the Managed Service Solution across the three Councils in April 2015, Human 

Resources processes are now undertaken on Agresso for all three Councils. 

All of these changes have increased the challenges placed upon the Funds internal 

resources and highlighted the need to be flexible and responsive to adapt and maintain 

high standards of service. 

Purpose & Scope of the Fund 

The Tri-Borough Pension Service supports the Pension Funds of Westminster City 

Council, London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham and the Royal Borough of 

Kensington & Chelsea. These Funds are part of 93 Funds making up the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS is a career Average scheme, funded 

principally by its constituent employers and members, with assistance from investment 

returns. Unlike other public sector pension schemes, the LGPS is fully invested in 

financial markets and aims to be fully funded over the long-term. 

The combined Tri-Borough Pension Funds serve 44,500 members from 88 constituent 

employer bodies. The combined value of assets under management at 31 March 2017 

Page 19



was £3.31bn and the total cost of administration in 2016/17 was £11.7M (0.35% of total 

assets) including investment management costs of 9.3m (0.28% of total assets).  

Governance & Management of the Funds 

The City of Westminster, London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham and the Royal 

Borough of Kensington & Chelsea councils have combined certain parts of their 

operational areas to provide a more efficient service and greater resilience and this 

includes the Pensions Finance teams. 

The combined team was formed in February 2012 and is responsible for the 

management of the pension fund investments across the three boroughs. The team is 

based at Westminster’s offices.  The Pension Funds continue to be managed separately 

in accordance with each borough’s strategy and so each continues to have sovereignty 

over decision-making.  However, officers are continually seeking to improve efficiency 

and resilience and to minimise the cost of running the Pension Funds, in line with the tri-

borough working aims. 

Stakeholders of the Funds’ 

The Funds’ customers fall into three categories: 

a) Scheme members: 

 Actives (c11,400) 

 Deferred (c20,200) 

 Pensioners (c12,900) 

 

b) Employers of Scheme members 

 Scheduled (46) 

 Admitted (42) 

 

c) Regulatory Bodies & Stakeholders 

 LGPS Scheme Advisory Board 

 Department of Communities & Local Government (DCLG) 

 HM Revenues & Customs 

 The Department for Work & Pensions 

 Investment Managers, Actuaries & Advisers, the Custodian 

 

Aims and Purpose of the Funds 

 

The specific aims of the Funds as set out in the Investment Strategy and Funding 

Strategy Statements is to: 

 Ensure that sufficient resources are available to meet the liabilities as they fall 

due; 

 Maximise the returns from investments within reasonable risk parameters; 

Page 20



 Enable employer contribution rates to be kept as nearly constant as possible and 

at reasonable cost to the taxpayers, scheduled and admitted bodies; 

 Manage employers’ liabilities effectively and in particular minimise the level of 

irrecoverable debt, when an employer ceases to participate. 

Summary of the Funds 

The market value of Funds’ assets, the most recent actuarial valuation assessment of the 

funding levels and the latest membership numbers are summarised in the table below 

based upon information available as at 31st March 2017: 

 Value of 
assets 

Funding Level  Total 
membership  

 

Hammersmith and Fulham £1,002m 88% 15,454 

Kensington and Chelsea £1,049m 103% 11,621 

Westminster £1,261m 80% 17,472 

 

Key Policy Documents 

Key policy documents which may be helpful in terms of providing additional information 

can be found on the Fund’s individual websites: 

 Annual Report & Accounts 

 Triennial Valuation Report 

 Funding Strategy Statement 

 Investment Strategy Statement 

 Funding Strategy Statement 

 Communications Strategy 

 Governance Compliance Statement 

 Risk Register 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM PENSION FUND 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Plans_performance_and_stati

stics/Statement_of_accounts/68526_Statement_of_accounts.asp#0  

 

ROYAL BOROUGH OF KENSINGTON & CHELSEA PENSION FUND 

https://www.rbkc.gov.uk/council/how-council-manages-money/council-spending-and-

finances/council-spending-and-finances#pension  

 

WESTMINSTER PENSION FUND 

http://www.wccpensionfund.co.uk/about-us/forms-and-publications.aspx 

 

 

 

Page 21

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Plans_performance_and_statistics/Statement_of_accounts/68526_Statement_of_accounts.asp#0
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/Directory/Council_and_Democracy/Plans_performance_and_statistics/Statement_of_accounts/68526_Statement_of_accounts.asp#0
https://www.rbkc.gov.uk/council/how-council-manages-money/council-spending-and-finances/council-spending-and-finances#pension
https://www.rbkc.gov.uk/council/how-council-manages-money/council-spending-and-finances/council-spending-and-finances#pension
http://www.wccpensionfund.co.uk/about-us/forms-and-publications.aspx


Resources 

This section summarises the resources available to the three Funds to undertake the 

planned activities. 

The tri-borough funds are supported by an officer team and various other advisers 

detailed in the table below: 

 

 Hammersmith and 
Fulham 

Kensington and 
Chelsea 

Westminster 

Officers Peter Worth Interim Head Tri-borough Pensions & Treasury 

 
Pension Fund Officers: 

Alex Robertson, Sue Hands and Yvonne Thompson-Hoyte 
 

Investment adviser Alistair Sutherland: 

Deloitte 

Andrew Elliott: 

Hymans Robertson 

Alistair Sutherland: 

Deloitte 

Actuary Graeme Muir: Barnett Waddingham 

Legal advisers Eversheds LLP 

Custodian Northern Trust 

Fund Managers:  

Equities  Baillie Gifford 

 Majedie  Majedie 

  Longview 

 Legal & General 

Absolute Return Ruffer Pyrford  

Fixed Income Insight  Insight 

Private Equity Invesco Adams Street  

 Unigestion   

Property  CBRE Hermes 

 Standard Life Kames Standard Life 

Secure Income Partners Group   

 Oak Hill Advisers   

 M & G   

Cash Legal & General  

 

 

 

 

Page 22



Pensions Action Plan 

Since the Pensions shared service was established, there have been several important 

developments to improve the effectiveness of the team and deliver some of the synergies 

expected from a shared service offering. 

These include increased collaboration and more efficient use of resources, improved 

levels of skills and competencies and greater resilience in delivering the services. 

This plan seeks to build further on the work done to date and identified actions to be 

taken to put the Tri-Borough Pensions Service as a leader amongst its peers. 

The actions in this plan are split into 3 key areas;  

Operational improvements which will streamline existing working practices and work 

towards a consistent set of outputs to be delivered by the team, 

Assurance improvements which highlight ways of demonstrating the Funds are being 

managed effectively and within the regulatory framework, and  

Financial proposals which will ensure the costs of delivering the scheme administration 

are understood and minimised. 

The objectives of the improvements were identified as follows: 

1. Operational (doing things better): 

a. To ensure Pension Committees and Local Pension Boards are fully 

supported; 

b. To better understand, manage and monitor the risks of the Funds; 

c. To support an improvement in the quality of communications with 

Employers and scheme members. 

 

2. Assurance (doing things right): 

a. To ensure the most effective governance arrangements are in place; 

b. To improve the level of controls assurance and reporting frameworks; 

c. To ensure the Scheme is efficiently managed and complies with relevant 

regulations. 

 

3. Financial (being cost efficient): 

a. To fully understand the Funds’ current and expected financial position; 

b. To optimise the procurement of services utilised by the Funds; 

c. To minimise the cost of administering the Funds locally; 

d. To improve the quality and transparency of financial reporting.

Page 23



Governance 

Action Link to 
Objectives 

Purpose Completion 
Date 

Embed ISS 
and FSS 
Statements 

1c 
2a 
2c 

To ensure the Regulatory requirements of 
the Public Service Pensions Act 2016 are 
met in terms of embedding and 
scrutinizing the working of the new 
Investment Strategy and Funding Strategy 
Statements 

September 
2017 

Update Risk 
Registers to 
reflect 
Financial and 
Member Risks 

1a 
1b 

Update Risk registers so that risks reflect 
financial and member metrics to ensure 
decision makers are regularly aware of the 
risks involved and can establish mitigation 
as necessary. 

September 
2017 

Knowledge & 
Skills Training 
programme 

1a 
2a 
2c 

To ensure Local Pension Boards/Pension 
Committees and Officers meet regulatory 
requirements to have the necessary 
knowledge and skills and to support 
individuals to achieve this requirements 
through training needs analysis and a 
bespoke training programme. 

December 
2017 

Agree 
‘Pensions 
Administration’ 
SLA between 
HR and 
Finance 

1a 
2a 
2b 
 

To clarify the internal roles and 
responsibilities involved in operating the 
Pension Fund in terms of regulatory 
requirements and key functions to ensure 
the quality and continuity of service is 
provided to employees, employers and 
other stakeholders. 

September 
2017 

Update 
Contracts 
Register 

2a 
2c 

Ensure all contractual arrangements are 
documented in one place and on-going 
procurement requirements are known and 
planned for. 

September 
2017 

 

Scheme Administration 

Action Link to 
Objectives 

Purpose Completion 
Date 

Long Term 
Cash Flow 
forecast (given 
negative cash 
flow positions) 

1a 
3a 
3d 
 

1. Identify monthly cash flows for each 
fund for next 3 years 

2. Highlight key drivers of cash flows 
and major risk areas 

3. Establish monitoring and updating 
procedures 

4. Provide regular updates to Pension 
Committees 

5. Agree policy of actions to address 
shortfalls 

September 
2017 

Resolve 1b 1. Document and Agree end to end October 

Page 24



issues on the 
end to end 
Starters 
Leavers 
Changes 
process  

1c 
2b 
3a 
3c 
3d 
 

process and ownership at each 
stage. 

2. Agree monitoring and review 
process 

3. Provide regular updates to Pension 
Committees 

2017 

Admission 
Agreement 
Process 

1a 
1b 
1c 
2c 
 

1. Prepare standardised approach to 
the process of instigating an 
Admission Agreement 

2. Agree the approach with HR and 
Pension Committees 

3. Communicate approach internally 
and to all Employing Bodies 

4. Provide regular updates to Pension 
Committees 

December 
2017 

Forge Closer 
relationship 
with London 
CIV 
 
 

1b 
1c 

1. Ensure that 3B requirements are 
fully articulated and understood 

2. Ensure 3B have a voice on all the 
main working groups to shape 
requirements and outcomes 

3.  

July 2017 

Improve Fund 
Websites 

1c 
3c 
 

1. Update template webpage for new 
key areas 

2. Work with IT to deliver user friendly 
interface subject to VFM including 
link to employee portal at Surrey 

3. Ensure awareness of website to 
employers and employees 

December 
2017 

Ensure Funds 
Reconcile to 
Financial 
System within 
financial year 

1b 
1c 
2b 
3a 
3c 
3d 
 

1. Ensure that financial system reflects 
custodian records as submitted on a 
quarterly basis. 

2. Ensure all reconciliations (other than 
above) signed off on a monthly basis 

June 2017 

Create Key 
Controls 
Matrix 

2b 1. Establish matrix of all financial 
controls 

2. Agree monitoring and reporting 
procedures 

June 2017 

 

Funding & Investments 

Action Link to 
Objectives 

Purpose Completion 
Date 

Investment 
Strategy 
Reviews 

1a 
1b 
2c 

To ensure each Fund’s investment strategy 
is optimal. The Funds are currently 
considering the appropriateness of their 
strategies in light of the tri-ennial revaluation, 
cash flow forecasts and rebalancing policies 

September 
2017 
 
 
As 

Page 25



and further work may be required depending 
on the expected consultation on asset 
pooling. 
Existing Manager’s underperformance or 
new developments in the markets may 
trigger a further review. 

required 

Improve Fund 
Manager 
Monitoring 
Arrangements 

1a 
2a 
 

1. To maximise the benefits from 
engagement with Fund Managers by 
establishing a structured meeting 
schedule and standard format involving 
Officers and Members. 

2. Work with the CIV to ensure that 
monitoring arrangements for Funds that 
are transferred are to the same level 

 

September 
2017 

Investment 
Adviser 
Contract 

1a 
3b 
 

To ensure each Fund secures the best 
possible advice and value for money in 
relation to its investment adviser 
arrangements. 

2017 

Actuarial 
Services 
Contract 

2c 
3b 
 

To ensure each Fund secures the best value 
for money in relation to its actuarial 
arrangements. 

2017 

Review Fund 
Manager 
Fees 
 

3a 
3c 
3d 

1. Given the national focus on Investment 
Management Costs ensure fee data is 
accurate and comparable using 
appropriate benchmarking services and 
demonstrates good value to the Funds.  

2. Only transfer items to the London CIV if 
Fee reductions (ensuring performance is 
maintained at same level) 

2017 

 

 

Page 26


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Minutes of Pensions Sub Committee
	20.06.2017 Pensions Sub Minutes

	5 Pensions Business Plan 2017/18
	Appendix 1 Business Plan 17-18


